

Regulatory Analysis Form

2000 OCT 24 AM 10:40

Regulatory Analysis Form

This space for use by IRRC

REVIEW COMMISSION

(1) Agency

Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency

(2) I.D. Number (Governor's Office Use)

#30-55

#30-56

#30-57

#30-58

IRRC Number:

2157

(3) Short Title

- Reductions of Major Water Use in the Delaware River Basin Drought Emergency Area
- Prohibition of Nonessential Water Uses in a Commonwealth Drought Emergency Area
- Philadelphia Drought Water Emergency Plan
- Local Water Rationing Plan

(4) PA Code Cite

4 Pa. Code Chapter 118

4 Pa. Code Chapter 119

4 Pa. Code Chapter 119a

4 Pa. Code Chapter 120

(5) Agency Contacts & Telephone Numbers

Primary Contact: Mark Goodwin 717-651-2010

Secondary Contact: Stuart Gansell 717-783-7420

(6) Type of Rulemaking (Check One)

- ☒ Proposed Rulemaking
☐ Final Order Adopting Regulation
☐ Final Order, Proposed Rulemaking Omitted

(7) Is a 120-Day Emergency Certification Attached?

- ☒ No
☐ Yes: By the Attorney General
☐ Yes: By the Governor

(8) Briefly explain the regulation in clear and non-technical language.

The revised regulations will be effective at all times, rather than only during declared drought emergencies. They will also be effective statewide, rather than only in the declared emergency area. This will enable the designation of a permanent Commonwealth Drought Coordinator (CDC) within the Department of Environmental Protection. It will authorize the CDC to receive and approve drought management plans on an ongoing basis from water users across the Commonwealth. While the regulations will remain in effect at all times, implementation of actual emergency provisions of the regulations, including the nonessential water use bans, would only be effective during a declared emergency and within the declared emergency area, as before.

Chapter 118

Chapter 118 requires the submittal of drought contingency plans by public water suppliers and major industrial/commercial water users. References limiting the effective area of the regulations to the Delaware River Basin are being removed from the regulations in order to make them applicable statewide.

Regulatory Analysis Form

(8) Continued...

To the extent practicable, references to the Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency (PEMA) with regard to submittal and review of drought contingency plans are being removed from the regulations, and authority and responsibility for those activities are being delegated to the CDC, as agent for PEMA. In a similar manner, the current authorities and responsibilities of the Emergency Management Council in the appeal process are being assigned to PEMA and further delegated to the extent practicable to the Public Utility Commission's administrative law judges or others.

Chapter 119

Chapter 119 contains the bans on nonessential water use, which are effective during a declared drought emergency. Many revisions are being proposed in Chapter 119. As in Chapter 118, to the extent practicable, responsibilities and authorities are being delegated from the Council to PEMA and from PEMA to the CDC. These procedures again affect plan or variance submissions, reviews, approvals and appeals.

The effective emergency area is being expanded to include the complete service area of any public water supply agency whose source of water is located in the declared emergency area. The revisions provide that a public water supply agency whose sources are not in jeopardy, although located within a declared emergency area, may request a variance from the nonessential use bans, if the agency is following a drought contingency plan that was approved by the CDC within the previous three years.

Definitions have been added to clarify the meanings of athletic field, newly seeded and sodded grass, effective conservation, professional landscaper and irrigation contractor.

A new section is added to specifically address athletic fields, which were previously considered part of the "lawn" section. Separate regulations are provided for normal athletic fields and sand-based fields. Irrigation of sand-based fields will require metering and reporting and must be done according to a plan approved by the CDC. Normal athletic fields will be limited to watering one time per week; while sand-based fields will be limited to one and a half inches of water per week.

The golf course regulations have been completely rewritten. As with the sand-based athletic fields, irrigation of golf courses will require metering and reporting and must be done according to a plan approved by the CDC. The golf courses will be required to reduce their watering to 70 percent of the average daily quantity of water used, by month, in the previous 5 years, within lower and upper limits.

The grass and landscape/nursery sections of the regulations are being modified primarily to recognize the efficiencies in using automated irrigation systems, compared to the "hand-held bucket and hose" techniques allowed in the current regulations.

Fountains or waterfalls necessary to sustain fish life will be allowed to operate; water will be allowed to be used to replenish fish ponds and water gardens to sustain fish and aquatic life.

Revisions in the mobile equipment and paved surface sections recognize the need to wash

Regulatory Analysis Form

(8) Continued...

equipment or areas related to food vending and hauling. The use of a hand-held hose with automatic shutoff nozzle will be allowed, up to two minutes, for washing personal cars, recognizing that this will generally require less water than the "bucket" method allowed in the current regulations.

The fire hydrant regulations previously contained in Chapter 119a are being incorporated into Chapter 119; while Chapter 119a, which dealt specifically with Philadelphia, is being eliminated.

Chapter 119a

This chapter, which applies specifically to Philadelphia, is being eliminated and the section on fire hydrants is being incorporated into Chapter 119, as indicated above.

Chapter 120

This chapter applies solely to public and municipal water supply systems, and allows either the municipality or the water supply agency to institute water rationing if the bans on nonessential water uses effected through Chapter 119 are insufficient to protect local water supplies. The suggested revisions to this chapter are primarily procedural in nature, some of them reflecting the proposed assignments and delegations of authority from the Council and/or PEMA to PEMA and/or the CDC. Again, the appeal processes reflect the intended use of Public Utility Commission administrative law judges as hearing officers. In addition, procedures for amendment or repeal of an implemented rationing plan are being simplified.

(9) State the statutory authority for the regulation and any relevant state or federal court decisions.

Emergency Management Services Code (35 Pa. C.S. §§ 7101-7707).

(10) Is the regulation mandated by any federal or state law or court order, or federal regulation? If yes, cite the specific law, case or regulation, and any deadlines for action.

Emergency Management Services Code

Regulatory Analysis Form

(11) Explain the compelling public interest that justifies the regulation. What is the problem it addresses?

Introduction

The drought experience of 1998-99 offered insight into many ways in which the drought emergency regulations found at Chapters 118, 119 and 120 have become outdated with the passage of nearly 20 years since they were initially written and nearly 10 years since they were last revised. Technology and social trends have advanced in ways that earlier drafters of the regulations could not have envisioned. As an example, irrigation practices have advanced with new technologies, and it may now be more efficient to irrigate with automated irrigation systems than to water with a hand-held hose in many cases.

Overall, our experience has also shown us the potential for more efficient ways to manage water use during drought emergencies. For example, a permanent Commonwealth Drought Coordinator, with authority to approve drought plans prior to a drought, rather than during an emergency, would enable the Emergency Management Council to focus more clearly on drought emergency operations and at the same time provide for more meaningful reductions in and more efficient use of available water resources.

The proposed revision will move the Commonwealth toward full-time drought preparedness and management. It will authorize the CDC to receive and approve drought management plans on an ongoing basis from water users across the Commonwealth, thus allowing more opportunity to provide education and technical assistance to water users to guide them in the development of their individual drought plans. It will also allow more time for the CDC and related staff to adequately review plans and to approve them prior to an actual emergency.

Chapter 118

The Chapter 118 regulations were originally written to apply only to the Delaware River Basin portion of the Commonwealth. Many of the activities involved in submittal and review of drought contingency plans, as required by the regulations, included duplications of effort by both PEMA and the CDC.

Chapter 119

Problems were experienced previously when public water supply service areas extended beyond an emergency county into a non-emergency county, with the result that only a part of the service area was subject to emergency restrictions. Public water supply systems located within a declared emergency area may have adequate sources or reserves of water and are thus unnecessarily impacted by bans on nonessential water use.

Golf courses have been impacted to the extent of significant grass loss because of insufficient irrigation allowances, while others have been able to circumvent the nonessential water use restrictions because of inadequate enforcement ability in the current regulations.

Regulatory Analysis Form

(11) Continued...

Citizens were forced to request variances under the current regulations in order to protect fish and aquatic life in fish ponds and water gardens.

Similarly, variances were required in order to wash equipment or areas related to food vending and hauling.

Chapter 120

Procedural changes are required in order to reflect the proposed assignments and delegations of authority from the Council and/or PEMA to PEMA and/or the CDC. Procedures for amendment or repeal of an implemented rationing plan are complicated and confusing in the current regulations.

(12) State the public health, safety, environmental or general welfare risks associated with non-regulation.

Under the current regulations, many citizens are inconvenienced by the need to prepare and submit requests for variances from the nonessential water use regulations for certain forms of water use that are generally approved by the Commonwealth Drought Coordinator anyway, such as for operation of essential aeration equipment in fish ponds, or washing paved surfaces or mobile equipment associated with food vending or hauling. This poses unnecessary stress and/or loss of income or property to those individuals while awaiting approval of their requests. Many provisions of the current regulations no longer serve to manage water use in the most effective manner, as a result of changing technologies during the past 20 years, such as use of modern automatically-controlled irrigation equipment, thus posing unwarranted risk to both the environment and to health, safety and welfare.

While the Commonwealth has yet to experience a drought severe enough to warrant general cutbacks in industrial/commercial water uses, the revisions will clarify and effectuate statewide the requirements for such users to plan for cutbacks in order to protect life and health-sustaining water uses should such conditions occur.

(13) Describe who will benefit from the regulation. (Quantify the benefits as completely as possible and approximate the number of people who will benefit.

The revisions will help protect the livelihoods of thousands of individuals involved in the landscaping business across the Commonwealth, while at the same time managing water use for irrigation of gardens and shrubs far more effectively than do the current regulations. Thousands of organizations and schools owning athletic fields will be better able to protect their fields as well as the safety of their players as a result of the sweeping revisions to the athletic field regulations. Similarly, over 700 golf courses across the Commonwealth will be able to protect this multi-million dollar industry by being able to more effectively use the water allotted to them under the completely-revised golf course regulations. Hundreds of individuals involved in mobile power washing businesses will be able to sustain their livelihoods while more effectively restricting water use for washing allowed surfaces and mobile equipment. Thousands of citizens will benefit from the provisions for maintaining fish ponds and water gardens. Millions of citizens will benefit from the revised car-washing provisions.

Regulatory Analysis Form

(14) Describe who will be adversely affected by the regulation. (Quantify the adverse effects as completely as possible and approximate the number of people who will be adversely affected.)

We do not anticipate adverse effects resulting from the revisions. The revisions have all been developed to positively address adverse effects that resulted from the current regulations.

(15) List the persons, groups or entities that will be required to comply with the regulation. (Approximate the number of people who will be required to comply.)

- **Chapter 118 - Approximately 2000 public water supply systems and perhaps as many as 2500 large industrial/commercial users, statewide, would be affected, but these numbers would be restricted to the specific emergency area declared in any particular drought.**
- **Chapter 119 - The entire citizenry of the Commonwealth, but again restricted to the specific emergency area declared.**
- **Chapter 120 - Approximately 2000 public water supply systems, statewide, but this number would be limited generally to only a very few systems who may need to implement rationing in an emergency area.**

(16) Describe the communications with and input from the public in the development and drafting of the regulation. List the persons and/or groups who were involved, if applicable.

During preparation of the proposed revisions to the regulations, meetings were held with representatives of the golf course industry, athletic field owners (both public and private), the landscape and nursery industry, the public water supply industry (both public and private investor-owned), and the food processing industry. Additionally, three public information meetings were held in Pittsburgh, Harrisburg and Bethlehem, at which the revisions were described to the public in attendance. Comments were accepted from the public, as well as from the specific interest groups mentioned above, and all comments were considered and incorporated to the extent practicable in the final recommended revisions. Revisions relating to the interest group representatives were provided to them, and generally, their concurrence was secured.

(17) Provide a specific estimate of the costs and/or savings to the regulated community associated with compliance, including any legal, accounting or consulting procedures which may be required.

In general, the revisions will not result in additional costs to the regulated community. Exceptions may include the golf course and sand-based athletic field owners. In both of these cases, the revisions will require metering of irrigation water used during drought emergencies, and in the case of golf courses, metering of five prior years' irrigation water use will also be required. Meter installation costs for athletic fields should be less than \$250. For golf courses, meter installation should be in the \$700-1500 range, depending upon the size and type of meters required. Meter reading costs for athletic fields should be minimal. For golf courses, meter reading on a daily basis by grounds keepers should not impose any significant additional costs. Automatic recorders may be installed, if desired, to avoid the need for manual daily reading.

Regulatory Analysis Form

(17) Continued...

Savings will generally accrue to all the regulated community, to the extent that property and employment is protected by the revisions. These savings will occur in the form of reduced damage to or loss of grass or landscape materials, for not only the athletic field and golf course owners, but other businesses and homeowners as well. All the revisions have been designed to better protect property, health and employment. Jobs in the golf, landscape/nursery, mobile washing, and food processing and vending industries will be better protected. Athlete safety will be enhanced on athletic fields. Actual or estimated values for these savings, which will only accrue during an actual declared drought emergency, are not available.

(18) Provide a specific estimate of the costs and/or savings to local governments associated with compliance, including any legal, accounting or consulting procedures which may be required.

Because the revisions are designed to make the regulations clearer, and many of the compliance problems experienced with the current regulations are being addressed in the revisions, costs to local enforcement agencies should be reduced, or at least should not increase.

Local governments may experience additional costs associated with municipally-owned athletic fields or golf courses, as described in Question 17, above.

Savings, as described in Question 17, may likewise accrue to local governments or school districts, to the extent that they own or maintain athletic fields, golf courses and landscape/nursery materials. Health, safety and employment will be better protected for them also, as described in Question 17.

(19) Provide a specific estimate of the costs and/or savings to state government associated with the implementation of the regulation, including any legal, accounting, or consulting procedures which may be required.

The primary cost to DEP will be in staff time to review and approve irrigation plans submitted by approximately 800 golf courses and 50 sand-based athletic fields. Approximately 0.5 to 2.5 hours per plan may be required for review and approval. This represents a one-time resource commitment of up to 2000 man-hours. Semi-automation of the process may reduce this requirement significantly, perhaps to as little as 250-500 man-hours.

Savings will accrue to DEP through reduced time required for processing requests for variances from the non-essential water use bans. The revisions are designed to resolve most of the problems in the current regulations that led to requests for variances. In the 1999 drought, nearly 250 variance requests were processed, requiring approximately one man-hour each.

Regulatory Analysis Form

(20) In the table below, provide an estimate of the fiscal savings and costs associated with implementation and compliance for the regulated community, local government, and state government for the current year and five subsequent years.

	Current FY Year	FY +1 Year	FY +2 Year	FY +3 Year	FY +4 Year	FY +5 Year
SAVINGS:	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Regulated Community	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown
Local Government	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown
State Government	\$3000	\$3000	\$3000	\$3000	\$3000	\$3000
Total Savings	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown
COSTS:						
Regulated Community	\$812,500	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown
Local Government	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown
State Government	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown
Total Costs	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown
REVENUE LOSSES:						
Regulated Community	\$812,500	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown
Local Government	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown
State Government	Unknown	(\$3000)	(\$3000)	(\$3000)	(\$3000)	(\$3000)
Total Revenue Losses	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown

(20a) Explain how the cost estimates listed above were derived.

(a) State government savings are based on 500 variances processed during droughts in the 1990s, or an average of 50 per year, at an assumed savings of one man-hour or \$60.00 apiece, resulting in \$3000 per year savings. Additional costs, primarily in staff time related to processing athletic field and golf course drought operations plans, are unknown.

(b) Regulated community costs are based upon an average meter installation cost of \$1000 for 800 golf courses and \$250 for 50 athletic fields.

Most costs, if any, and savings are listed as unknown due to the uncertainty of drought occurrence and the actual value of property or income savings that may result from the revisions.

(20b) Provide the past three year expenditure history for programs affected by the regulation.

Regulatory Analysis Form

Program	FY - 3	FY - 2	FY - 1	Current FY
Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown

(21) Using the cost-benefit information provided above, explain how the benefits of the regulation outweigh the adverse effects and costs.

Overall, this is not possible to answer because of the large number of unknowns. Just based upon the actual estimated costs presented, and assuming that each golf course could reasonably save in excess of \$1000 in costs for replacing fairway grass, there would be an overall net savings to golf courses resulting from the proposed revisions. Many immeasurable savings will accrue throughout the regulated community. Overall, those additional savings are anticipated to far outweigh the remaining costs to state government.

(22) Describe the non-regulatory alternatives considered and the costs associated with those alternatives. Provide the reasons for their dismissal.

Not Applicable

(23) Describe alternative regulatory schemes considered and the costs associated with those schemes. Provide the reasons for their dismissal.

Non-metered alternatives were discussed with the golf course and athletic field interests. Their preference was to use the metered approach.

(24) Are there any provisions that are more stringent than federal standards? If yes, identify the specific provisions and the compelling Pennsylvania interest that demands stronger regulation.

Not Applicable

Regulatory Analysis Form

(25) How does this regulation compare with those of other states? Will the regulation put Pennsylvania at a competitive disadvantage with other states?

Our nonessential water use restrictions are generally compatible with surrounding states, as witnessed during the 1999 drought that affected all neighboring states except Ohio and West Virginia. No competitive disadvantage is foreseen. Maryland, Delaware, New Jersey and New York are all currently revising their drought management regulations as well, and all four states are considering Pennsylvania's approach as a guide for fashioning their new regulations.

(26) Will the regulation affect existing or proposed regulations of the promulgating agency or other state agencies? If yes, explain and provide specific citations.

DEP regulations will not be affected by the revisions.

(27) Will any public hearings or informational meetings be scheduled? Please provide the dates, times, and locations, if available.

As indicated in Question 16, public meetings were held in Harrisburg, on April 5, 2000; in Bethlehem on April 6, 2000; and in Pittsburgh on April 18, 2000. Additionally, several meetings were held in Harrisburg, during December 1999 and January 2000, with representatives of the golf course, landscape/nursery, athletic field and public water supply interests.

(28) Will the regulation change existing reporting, record keeping, or other paperwork requirements? Describe the changes and attach copies of forms or reports which will be required as a result of implementation, if available.

During declared drought emergencies only, owners of golf courses and sand-based athletic fields will be required to report irrigation usage to the CDC, on a monthly basis. Owners of golf courses should record usage for a five-year period prior to a drought emergency; this information will be included in their application for approval of a drought operations plan.

No reporting forms have been developed at this time.

Regulatory Analysis Form

(29) Please list any special provisions which have been developed to meet the particular needs of affected groups or persons including, but not limited to, minorities, elderly, small businesses, and farmers.

While not affecting farmers directly, the mobile equipment washing restrictions are being revised to allow washing of feed trucks, to help prevent spread of animal diseases between farms. The regulations are being revised specifically to address problems previously encountered by owners and operators of public water supply systems, golf courses, athletic fields, landscape/nursery businesses, mobile power-wash businesses, food processing and vending businesses, fish ponds, water gardens, and automated landscape irrigation systems.

(30) What is the anticipated effective date of the regulation; the date by which compliance with the regulation will be required; and the date by which any required permits, licenses or other approvals must be obtained?

Although no specific date is specified, approval of the proposed regulation revisions is anticipated to occur prior to December 31, 2000. Compliance with the regulations is only required during a declared drought emergency. Provisions of the regulations that apply absent a declared drought emergency are optional and are to the advantage of the segments of the regulated community to which they may apply, such as golf courses, athletic fields and public water supply agencies. Drought operation plans must be approved prior to actual irrigation of golf courses or sand-based athletic fields during a declared drought emergency; therefore approval prior to a drought is to the advantage of owners of such facilities.

(31) Provide the schedule for continual review of the regulation.

The regulations, as in the past, will be reviewed during each declared drought emergency, in order to determine from actual experience any reasonable or necessary modifications.

**FACE SHEET
FOR FILING DOCUMENTS
WITH THE LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE BUREAU**

(Pursuant to Commonwealth Documents Law)

RECEIVED

2000 OCT 24 AM 10:40

LEGISLATIVE
REVIEW COMMISSION

2157

DO NOT WRITE IN THIS SPACE

Copy below is hereby approved as to form and legality. Attorney General

BY: _____

(DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL)

OCT 16 2000

DATE OF APPROVAL

☐ Check if applicable
Copy not approved. Objections attached.

Copy below is hereby certified to be a true and correct copy of a document issued, prescribed or promulgated by:

**PENNSYLVANIA EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT AGENCY**

(AGENCY)

DOCUMENT/FISCAL NOTE NO. 30-56

DATE OF ADOPTION: 8/11/00

BY: _____

DIRECTOR

TITLE: _____
(EXECUTIVE OFFICER, CHAIRMAN OR SECRETARY)

Copy below is hereby approved as to form and legality. Executive or Independent Agencies.

BY: _____

8/24/00

DATE OF APPROVAL

(Deputy General Counsel)
(Chief Counsel, Independent Agency)
(Strike inapplicable title)

☐ Check if applicable. No Attorney General approval or objection within 30 days after submission.

Notice of

Proposed Rulemaking

Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency

4 Pa. Code Chapter 119

**Prohibition of Nonessential Water Uses in a Commonwealth
Drought Emergency Area**

RECEIVED
2000 OCT 24 AM 10:40

Notice of Proposed Rulemaking
Emergency Management Agency
(4 Pa. Code Chapters 118, 119, 119a and 120)

REVIEW COMMISSION
(Reductions of Major Water Use, Nonessential Water Uses, Water Emergency Plan
and Local Water Rationing Plans)

Preamble

The Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency (PEMA) proposes to amend 4 Pa. Code Chapters 118, 119, 119a and 120 (relating to Reductions of Major Water Use in the Delaware River Basin Drought Emergency Area, Prohibition of Nonessential Water Uses in a Commonwealth Drought Emergency Area, Philadelphia Drought Water Emergency Plan and Local Water Rationing Plans). The proposed amendments to Chapter 118 will make them applicable statewide, rather than just in the Delaware River Basin. The proposed amendments to Chapter 119 include proposed changes to the definition section and to the list of exceptions to the nonessential water use bans. The provisions of Chapter 119a are proposed to be eliminated and to be incorporated into Chapter 119. The proposed amendments to Chapter 120 are primarily procedural. Overall, the proposed amendments will move the Commonwealth toward full-time drought preparedness and management. Implementation of actual emergency provisions of the regulations, including the nonessential water use bans, will only be effective during a declared drought emergency and within the declared drought emergency area.

A. Effective Date

These amendments will go into effect upon publication in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* as final rulemaking.

B. Contact Persons

For further information, contact Mark L. Goodwin, Chief Counsel, Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency, 2605 Interstate Drive, Harrisburg, PA 17110-9364, (717) 651-2010. Information regarding submitting comments on these proposed regulations appear in Section I of this preamble. This proposal is available electronically through the PEMA web site at <http://www.pema.state.pa.us>. It is also available on the Department of Environmental Protection web site at <http://www.dep.state.pa.us> by choosing "Subjects" then "Drought Information" and then clicking on "Drought Regulations."

C. Statutory Authority

The proposed rulemaking is being made under the authority of Section 7313(3) of the Pennsylvania Emergency Management Services Code (Code), 35 Pa.C.S. § 7313(3), which grants PEMA the authority to adopt such rules and regulations as may be deemed necessary to carry out the provisions of the Code.

D. Background and Purpose

The drought experience of 1998-99 offered insight into many ways in which the drought emergency regulations found at Chapters 118, 119, 119a and 120 have become outdated with the passage of nearly 20 years since they were initially written and nearly 10 years since they were last revised. Technology and social trends have advanced in ways that earlier drafters of the regulations could not have envisioned. As an example, irrigation practices have advanced with new technologies, and it may now be more efficient to irrigate in many cases with automated irrigation systems than to water with a hand-held hose.

Overall, the Commonwealth's experience with droughts has also shown the potential for more efficient ways to manage water use during drought emergencies. Experience has shown, for example, that a permanent Commonwealth Drought Coordinator (CDC), with authority to approve drought plans prior to a drought, rather than during an emergency, would enable the Agency to focus more closely on drought emergency operations, and at the same time would provide for more meaningful reductions in and more efficient use of available water resources.

The proposed amendments will move the Commonwealth toward full-time drought preparedness and management. Implementation of actual emergency provisions of the regulations, including the nonessential water use bans, will only be effective during a declared drought emergency and within the declared drought emergency area, as is presently the case. However, the revised regulations will be effective at all times, rather than only during declared drought emergencies. They will also be effective statewide, rather than only in the declared emergency area. This will enable the designation of a permanent Commonwealth Drought Coordinator within the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP). The proposed regulations will authorize the CDC to receive and approve drought management plans on an ongoing basis from water users across the Commonwealth, thus allowing more opportunity to provide education and technical assistance to water users to guide them in the development of their individual drought plans. It will also allow more time for the CDC and DEP staff to adequately review plans and to approve them prior to an actual emergency. This is in concert with new provisions in the regulations that require certain classes of water users, such as golf courses, to operate according to an approved plan during an emergency.

Drafts of the proposed amendments were made available at informational meetings held during April 2000 in Harrisburg, Bethlehem and Pittsburgh. Notices of the

meetings and the availability of the draft regulations also were published in newspapers of general circulation across the Commonwealth and in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin* with a public comment period that ended April 30, 2000. The public comment received has been taken into consideration in the drafting of these proposed amendments to the drought regulations.

E. Summary of Regulatory Requirements

1. *Discussion of Proposed Amendments to Chapter 118*

The Chapter 118 regulations were originally written to apply only to the Delaware River Basin portion of the Commonwealth. References to the Delaware River Basin are being removed from the regulations in order to make them applicable statewide. Many of the activities involved in submittal and review of drought contingency plans, as required by the regulations, included duplications of effort by both PEMA and the CDC. To the extent practicable, references to PEMA with regard to those activities are being removed from the regulations, and authority and responsibility for those activities are being delegated to the CDC, as agent for PEMA. In a similar manner, the current authorities and responsibilities of the Pennsylvania Emergency Management Council in the appeal process, are being assigned to PEMA and further delegated to the extent practicable to the Public Utility Commission's administrative law judges or others.

In Section 1, definitions of "consumptive water", "designated drought emergency area", and "water user" have been added, and the definitions of "Commonwealth Drought Coordinator" has been revised, consistent with Chapters 119 and 120.

In Section 2, the requirement for drought contingency plans has been limited to only those public water suppliers serving more than 50 customer connections.

In Section 3, the scope has been revised to include the entire Commonwealth, rather than just the Delaware River Basin.

In Section 4, revisions will allow the CDC as well as the Governor's Emergency Proclamation to order preparation of drought contingency plans by public water suppliers, including those whose sources or service areas may be located within the emergency area. Plans approved by the CDC within 3 prior years will meet the requirement. Provisions and criteria for variances from the plans are added to the requirements.

Section 5 revisions will allow the CDC as well as the Governor's Emergency Proclamation to order preparation of drought contingency plans by large self-supplied industrial and commercial water users.

Section 6 is revised to include criteria to guide the CDC's consideration of equitable reductions when ordering the implementation of industrial/commercial contingency plans.

Section 8 revisions clarify and improve the due process protections provided to those parties who request variances due to extraordinary hardship.

Section 9 establishes requirements for establishment and operations of county drought management task forces.

2. *Discussion of Proposed Amendments to Chapter 119*

Chapter 119 contains the bans on nonessential water use, which are effective during a declared drought emergency. Many revisions are being proposed in Chapter 119. As in Chapter 118, to the extent practicable, responsibilities and authorities are being assigned from the Council to PEMA and delegated from PEMA to the CDC. These procedures again affect plan or variance submissions, reviews, approvals and appeals.

The effective emergency area is being expanded to include the complete service area of any public water supply agency whose source of water is located in the declared emergency area. This will eliminate problems experienced previously when public water supply service areas extended beyond an emergency county into a non-emergency county with the result that only a part of the service area was subject to emergency restrictions.

In Section 1, definitions have been added or revised to clarify the meanings of athletic field, effective conservation, irrigation contractor, newly seeded and sodded grass, paved surface, and professional landscaper and for consistency with Chapters 118 and 120.

In Section 4, revisions are added to specifically address athletic fields, which were previously considered part of the "lawn" section. Regulations are provided separately for normal athletic fields and sand-based fields, because the sand-based fields (similar to golf greens) require more frequent and greater quantities of watering. Irrigation of sand-based fields will require metering and reporting and must be done according to a plan approved by the CDC. Normal athletic fields will be limited to watering one time per week; while sand-based fields will be limited to one and a half inches of water per week.

The golf course regulations in Section 4 have been rewritten. As with the sand-based athletic fields, irrigation of golf courses will require metering and reporting and must be done according to a plan approved by the CDC. The golf courses will be required to reduce their watering to 70 percent of the average daily quantity of water used, by month, in the previous 5 years, within lower and upper limits.

The Section 4 grass and landscape/nursery regulations are being modified primarily to recognize the efficiencies in using automated irrigation systems, compared to the "hand-held bucket and hose" techniques allowed in the current regulations.

Fountains or waterfalls necessary to sustain fish life will be allowed to operate under Section 4 revisions; water will be allowed to be used to replenish fish ponds and water gardens to sustain fish and aquatic life.

Revisions in the mobile equipment and paved surface regulations in Section 4 recognize the need to wash equipment or areas related to food vending and hauling. The use of a hand-held hose with automatic shutoff nozzle will be allowed, up to two minutes,

for washing personal cars. This process will generally require less water than the "bucket" method allowed in the current regulations.

The fire hydrant regulations previously contained in Chapter 119a are being incorporated into Section 4; while Chapter 119a, which dealt specifically with the County/City of Philadelphia, is being eliminated.

In Section 6, the revisions provide that a public water supply agency whose sources are not in jeopardy, although located within a declared emergency county, may request a variance from the nonessential use bans, if the agency is following a drought contingency plan that was approved by the CDC within the previous three years.

Section 6 variance procedures are modified to improve due process.

Section 7 is being stricken in order to make the regulations effective full-time; although restrictions will only be effective during a declared drought emergency.

3. *Discussion of Proposed Amendments to Chapter 119a*

This chapter, which applies specifically to the County/City of Philadelphia, is being eliminated and the section on fire hydrants is being incorporated into Chapter 119, Section 4, as indicated above.

4. *Discussion of Proposed Amendments to Chapter 120*

This chapter applies solely to public and municipal water supply systems and allows either the municipality or the water supply agency to institute water rationing if the bans on nonessential water uses effected through Chapter 119 are insufficient to protect local water supplies. The suggested revisions to this chapter are primarily procedural in nature, some of them reflecting the proposed assignments and delegations of authority from the Council and/or PEMA to PEMA and/or the CDC. Revisions are included to improve due process and notification provisions.

Section 1 definitions have been revised for consistency with Chapters 118 and 119 definitions.

Section 2 revisions authorize the CDC to approve water rationing plans, as an agent of PEMA.

In Section 9, the appeal processes reflect the intended use of Public Utility Commission administrative law judges as hearing officers.

Section 10 is being deleted, as unnecessary. It is not envisioned that a rationing plan would be suspended. Water supply recovery would result in repeal rather than suspension of the rationing plan.

In Section 14, the repeal process has been clarified and simplified.

F. **Benefits, Costs and Compliance**

Benefits

The proposed amendments to the regulations will benefit the public by protecting water resources during a declared drought emergency and will prevent water supply shortages by curtailing nonessential water use. The procedures will be streamlined for adoption of drought contingency plans and local water rationing plans.

The exact fiscal impact of the proposed amendments cannot be calculated. For most affected persons or businesses, the impact will be positive in terms of reducing possible economic hardship. Paperwork will be reduced by the proposed amendments to Chapter 119 by reducing the number of variance applications prepared by individuals, business and industry. Additionally, DEP and PEMA will not have to process as many applications.

The benefits of the proposed amendments in conserving a natural resource are impossible to quantify. Reductions in water use, although inconvenient to many users, will serve to extend available supplies, thus insuring that water is available for public health and safety needs and economic productivity. The availability of existing supplies will be extended by reducing the daily withdrawal of water from sources, providing an opportunity for replenishment over time should there be adequate precipitation. Extending water supplies also provides an opportunity for water suppliers to develop alternative sources of water.

Savings will generally accrue to all the regulated community, to the extent that property and employment is protected by the revisions. These savings will occur in the form of reduced damage to or loss of grass or landscape materials, for not only the athletic field and golf course owners, but other businesses and homeowners as well. All the revisions have been designed to better protect property, health and employment. Jobs in the golf, landscape/nursery, mobile washing, and food processing and vending industries will be better protected. Athlete safety will be enhanced on athletic fields. Actual or estimated values for these savings, which will only accrue during an actual declared drought emergency, are not available.

Savings may likewise accrue to local governments or school districts, to the extent that they own or maintain athletic fields, golf courses and landscape/nursery materials. Health, safety and employment will be better protected for them also.

Savings will accrue to DEP through reduced time required for processing requests for variances from the non-essential water use bans. The revisions are designed to resolve most of the problems in the current regulations that lead to requests for variances. In the 1999 drought, nearly 250 variance requests were processed, requiring approximately one man-hour each.

Compliance Costs

In general, the revisions will not result in additional costs to the regulated community. Exceptions may include golf course and sand-based athletic field owners. In both of these cases, the revisions will require metering of irrigation water used during drought emergencies, and in the case of golf courses, metering of five prior years' irrigation water use will also be required. Meter installation costs for athletic fields should be less than \$250. For golf courses, meter installation should be in the \$700-1500 range, depending upon the size and type of meters required. Meter reading costs for athletic fields should be minimal. For golf courses, meter reading on a daily basis by grounds keepers should not impose any significant additional costs. Automatic recorders may be installed, if desired, to avoid the need for manual daily reading.

Because the revisions are designed to make the regulations clearer, and more efficient, and many of the compliance problems experienced with the current regulations are being addressed in the revisions, costs to local enforcement agencies should be reduced. Local governments may experience additional costs associated with municipally-owned athletic fields or golf courses, as described above.

The primary cost to DEP will be in staff time to review and approve irrigation plans submitted by approximately 800 golf courses and 50 sand-based athletic fields. Approximately 0.5 to 2.5 hours per plan may be required for review and approval. This represents a one-time resource commitment of up to 2000 man-hours. Semi-automation of the process may reduce this requirement significantly, perhaps to as little as 250-500 man-hours.

Compliance Assistance Plan

DEP provides guidance, sample plans and technical assistance to public water suppliers for developing drought contingency plans, water rationing plans and water conservation plans and programs. Similar materials will be developed for industrial/commercial water users to aid them in development of drought contingency plans, to the extent practicable.

Web-based, self-instructional application forms will be developed for submitting golf course and athletic field drought operations plans, and technical assistance will be provided as appropriate.

Paperwork Requirements

Owners of golf courses and sand-based athletic fields will be required to submit a drought operations plan for approval by the CDC, prior to irrigation of such facilities within a declared drought emergency area. The regulations will allow submittal and approval of such plans prior to the declaration of an emergency, at the option and advantage of the owner.

During declared drought emergencies only, owners of golf courses and sand-based athletic fields within the declared emergency area will be required to report irrigation usage to the CDC, on a monthly basis. Owners of golf courses should also record usage for a five-year period prior to a drought emergency. This information will be included in their application for approval of a drought operations plan.

Owners of public water supply systems and large self-supplied industrial or commercial water users whose sources or service areas are located within a declared emergency area may be required by the Governor or the CDC to submit drought contingency plans, during the declared emergency. The regulations provide for the submittal and approval of such plans prior to an emergency, again at the option and advantage of the owner.

G. Sunset Review

These regulations will be reviewed in accordance with the sunset review schedule published by PEMA to determine whether the regulations effectively fulfill the goals for which they were intended.

H. Regulatory Review

Under Section 5(a) of the Regulatory Review Act (71 P.S. 745.5(a)), on October 24-, 2000, the Agency submitted a copy of these proposed amendments to the Independent Regulatory Review Commission (IRRC) and the Chairpersons of the House Veterans Affairs and Emergency Preparedness Committee and Senate State Government Committee. In addition to submitting the proposed amendments, the Agency has provided IRRC and the Committees with a copy of a detailed regulatory analysis form prepared by the Agency in compliance with Executive Order 1996-1, "Regulatory Review and Promulgation." A copy of this material is available to the public upon request.

Under Section 5(g) of the Regulatory Review Act, if IRRC has objections to any portion of the proposed amendments, it will notify the Agency within 10 days of the close of the Committees' review period. The notification shall specify the regulatory review criteria which have not been met by that portion of the proposed amendments to which an objection is made. The Regulatory Review Act specifies detailed procedures for review, prior to final publication of the amendments, by the Agency, the General Assembly and the Governor of objections raised.

I. Public Comment

Written Comments – Interested persons are invited to submit comments, suggestions, or objection regarding the proposed regulation to Mark L. Goodwin, Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency, 2605 Interstate Drive, Harrisburg, PA 17110-9364. Comments submitted by facsimile will not be accepted. Comments, suggestions, or objections must be received by the Agency by _____, 2000 (within 30 days of publication in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*).

Electronic Comments – Comments may be submitted electronically to PEMA at mgoodwin@state.pa.us and must also be received by the Agency by _____, 2000. A subject heading of the proposal and a return name and address must be included in each transmission. If an acknowledgement of electronic comments is not received by the sender within two working days, the comments should be retransmitted to ensure receipt.

BY:

David L. Smith, Director
Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency

CHAPTER 119. PROHIBITION OF NONESSENTIAL WATER USES IN A COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT EMERGENCY AREA

Section.

119.1. Definitions.

119.2. Purpose.

119.3. Scope.

119.4. Prohibition of nonessential water uses.

119.5. Penalties and enforcement.

119.5a. [Reserved].

119.6. Procedure for exemptions or variance from the prohibition of nonessential uses of water.

119.7. Implementation period.

119.8. [Reserved].

§ 119.1. Definitions.

The following words and terms, when used in this chapter, have the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

~~*Aesthetic uses*—The use of water for ornamental or decorative purposes, such as fountains, reflecting pools and waterfalls.~~

~~*Any water*—Any type of water, including fresh water, brackish water, waste water or reclaimed waste water.~~ WATER FROM ANY SOURCE INCLUDING PUBLICLY OR PRIVATELY OWNED SURFACE OR GROUND WATER SOURCES SUCH AS SPRINGS, WELLS, STREAMS, OR PONDS, INCLUDING FRESH WATER, BRACKISH WATER, WASTEWATER AND WATER COLLECTED DIRECTLY FROM PRECIPITATION IN RAIN BARRELS, CISTERNS OR SIMILAR CONTAINERS.

Arboretum—A place where trees, shrubs and plants are cultivated for scientific and educational purposes.

ATHLETIC FIELD---ANY SURFACE USED FOR ORGANIZED PROFESSIONAL OR AMATEUR SPORTS, INCLUDING RACING, CONTAINED WITHIN MARKED BOUNDARY LINES OR BARRIERS, EXCLUDING ANY FOUL, OUT-OF-BOUNDS OR OUT-OF-PLAY AREAS.

BENEFICIAL USE---USE OF ANY WATER THAT IS NECESSARY TO SERVE ESSENTIAL HEALTH, SAFETY AND ECONOMIC NEEDS, INCLUDING THE MAINTENANCE OF HUMAN, ANIMAL AND PLANT LIFE.

Brackish water—Water containing more than 1000 parts per million of dissolved salts.

~~**Commission**—The Delaware River Basin Commission, created by the Delaware River Basin Compact (32 P. S. §§ 815.101—815.106).~~

COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR—AN OFFICER OF THE DEPARTMENT APPOINTED BY THE SECRETARY OF THE DEPARTMENT, TO CARRY OUT RESPONSIBILITIES ESTABLISHED IN THE PENNSYLVANIA DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN TO COORDINATE COMMONWEALTH PLANNING, PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE ACTION TO A DROUGHT OR WATER SHORTAGE EMERGENCY.

~~**Council**—The Pennsylvania Emergency Management Council created by 35 Pa.C.S. §§ 7101—7707 (relating to emergency management services).~~

Department—The Department of Environmental Protection of the Commonwealth.

EFFECTIVE CONSERVATION - USE OF WATER AT THE MINIMUM RATE NECESSARY FOR THE INTENDED PURPOSE, IN A MANNER THAT DOES NOT RESULT IN THE USE OF WATER FOR PURPOSES THAT ARE PROHIBITED BY THESE REGULATIONS AND IN A MANNER THAT DOES NOT ALLOW APPLICATION OR RUNOFF OF WATER ONTO AREAS THAT ARE PROHIBITED BY THESE REGULATIONS.

Fresh water—Water withdrawn from a surface water or groundwater source, or from a public water supply system, located within this Commonwealth ~~which has not been previously used~~, other than WASTEWATER OR brackish water ~~and water from a nonpotable source~~. The term does not include water collected directly from precipitation in rain barrels, or cisterns OR SIMILAR CONTAINERS.

IRRIGATION CONTRACTOR – ANY PERSON WHO IS ENGAGED IN THE BUSINESS OF DESIGN, INSTALLATION OR REPAIR OF IRRIGATION EQUIPMENT AS A SOURCE OF INCOME.

Mobile equipment—A public, private or commercial automobile, truck, bus, trailer, CART, WAGON, railroad car, camper, boat or ~~an~~ other type of similar equipment.

NEWLY SEEDED OR SODDED GRASS AREA— ANY GRASS AREA FROM WHICH ALL GROWTH WAS REMOVED OR TILLED UNDER AND TO WHICH NEW SEED OR SOD WAS APPLIED WITHIN THE PREVIOUS TWELVE MONTHS.

Nurseries—Facilities which are used to grow or keep plants, trees, shrubs, vines, bulbs, cuttings, grafts, flowering annual plants, aquatic plants, seeds, TURF, GRASS, SOD or tubers for propagation, distribution or sale.

PAVED SURFACES---ANY SURFACE, SUCH AS STREETS, ROADS, SIDEWALKS, DRIVEWAYS, GARAGES, PARKING AREAS, TENNIS COURTS, DECKS AND PATIOS, WHICH HAS BEEN COVERED WITH CONCRETE, ASPHALT, TILE, WOOD OR OTHER SIMILAR MATERIAL, BUT NOT INCLUDING WALLS OR VERTICAL SURFACES OF BUILDINGS.

PEMA—The Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency of the Commonwealth created by 35 Pa.C.S. §§ 7101—7707.

PROFESSIONAL LANDSCAPER – ANY PERSON WHO IS ENGAGED IN THE BUSINESS OF INSTALLING OR MAINTAINING LANDSCAPE MATERIALS AS A FULL-TIME JOB.

Public water supply agency—A ~~person, partnership, association, corporation, municipality or municipal authority, district or other entity supplying or authorized to support water to the public~~ "COMMUNITY WATER SYSTEM" AS THAT TERM IS DEFINED IN THE PENNSYLVANIA SAFE DRINKING WATER ACT, ACT 43 OF 1984, 35 P.S. §721.3 .

~~**Reclaimed water**—Waste water which has been treated to allow reuse.~~

SAND-BASED ATHLETIC FIELD - AN ATHLETIC FIELD WITH A MAN-MADE ROOT ZONE THAT CONTAINS A MINIMUM OF 60 PERCENT SAND, BY WEIGHT, IN THE TOP FOUR TO TWELVE INCHES OF THE ROOT ZONE.

SECRETARY—THE SECRETARY OF THE DEPARTMENT.

Wastewater—Water which has been previously used for industrial, municipal, domestic or other purpose, and has not been returned to the A surface water or groundwater source.

~~**Water from a nonpotable source**—Water from a surface water or groundwater source which the Department determines is not used for public or private drinking water supply, and is not capable of being rendered suitable for drinking water supply by standard and economically feasible methods of treatment.~~

Water user—An individual, partnership, association, company, corporation, municipality, municipal authority, political subdivision or an agency of Federal, State, county or

municipal government. The term includes the officers, employees and agents of a partnership, association, company, corporation, municipality, municipal authority, political subdivision or an agency of Federal, State, county or municipal government.

§ 119.2. Purpose.

This chapter restricts nonessential water uses in response to a state of drought and water shortage emergency that has been declared by the Governor within specified areas of this Commonwealth to conserve water, to balance demand with limited available supplies and to assure that sufficient water is available to serve essential health, safety and economic needs.

§ 119.3. Scope.

~~(a) This chapter applies to all water uses within areas of this THE Commonwealth which are included in the Governor's Proclamation or Executive Order that declares a state of drought or water shortage emergency.~~

~~(b) Nonessential water uses within the County for Philadelphia shall be governed by regulations designed to achieve substantially equivalent consideration of water adopted by the City of Philadelphia Water Department and approved by the Council.~~

§ 119.4. Prohibition of nonessential water uses.

Whenever the Governor declares by Proclamation ~~or Executive Order~~ a state of drought or water shortage emergency in an area of this Commonwealth, the following water uses shall be deemed nonessential and are prohibited within areas that have been declared to be in a state of drought or water shortage emergency, INCLUDING WITHIN ANY PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY AGENCY'S SERVICE AREA FOR WHICH A SOURCE OF WATER IS LOCATED WITHIN THE EMERGENCY AREA. NOTHING IN PARAGRAPHS ONE THROUGH FOUR, BELOW, SHALL BE CONSTRUED TO ALLOW A PROHIBITED USE OF WATER AS EITHER A DIRECT OR INDIRECT EFFECT OF THE EXCEPTIONS CONTAINED THEREIN.

(1) The use of ANY water for watering of ~~lawns~~ GRASS, except:

(i) Water may be applied to grass areas APPROVED PRIOR TO OR DURING THE EMERGENCY as part of a sewage or storm water treatment system utilizing spray irrigation WHICH SYSTEM WAS APPROVED IN A PERMIT ISSUED BY THE DEPARTMENT PRIOR TO THE DROUGHT EMERGENCY PROCLAMATION.

~~(ii) Water may be applied at the minimum rate necessary to maintain grass tennis courts.~~

~~(iii)(ii)~~ Water may be used at the minimum rate necessary to establish and maintain newly seeded and sodded grass areas when applied between the hours of 5 p.m. to AND 9 a.m. by means of a bucket, can or hand held hose equipped with an automatic shut off nozzle or between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. BY ANY MEANS DESIGNED AND OPERATED TO ASSURE EFFECTIVE CONSERVATION. ~~Sprinklers may not be used for this purpose.~~

~~(iv)~~ Water may be used at the minimum rate necessary to establish and maintain newly seeded or sodded nonresidential grass areas exceeding 10,000 square feet when applied between the hours of 5 p.m. and 9 a.m., by any means designed and operated to assure effective conservation of the water.

~~(v)(iii)~~ Water may be used APPLIED by a professional landscaper at the minimum rate necessary TO ESTABLISH AND MAINTAIN on newly seeded and sodded grass areas greater than 10,000 square feet during regular working hours by any means designed and operated to assure effective conservation of the water.

(iv) WATER MAY BE USED BY PROFESSIONAL LANDSCAPERS OR IRRIGATION CONTRACTORS FOR THE PURPOSE OF TESTING NEWLY INSTALLED OR REPAIRED IRRIGATION EQUIPMENT FOR A PERIOD NOT TO EXCEED FIFTEEN MINUTES PER IRRIGATION ZONE.

(v). WATER MAY BE APPLIED FOR THE PURPOSE OF GRUB CONTROL, ONE TIME DURING THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD OF THE GOVERNOR'S PROCLAMATION OF DROUGHT EMERGENCY.

(vi). WATER MAY BE USED, IN A MANNER THAT ENSURES EFFECTIVE CONSERVATION, ~~to implement revegetation following earthmoving, where revegetation is required under an approved erosion and sedimentation control plan adopted under State law or regulation. Revegetation use shall comply with applicable best conservation management practices for revegetation prescribed by the Department and county conservation districts.~~

(2) THE USE OF ANY WATER FOR WATERING ATHLETIC FIELDS, EXCEPT:

(I) WATER MAY BE APPLIED TO ATHLETIC FIELD GRASS AREAS APPROVED PRIOR TO OR DURING THE EMERGENCY AS PART OF A SEWAGE OR STORM WATER TREATMENT SYSTEM UTILIZING SPRAY IRRIGATION, WHICH SYSTEM WAS APPROVED IN A PERMIT ISSUED BY THE DEPARTMENT PRIOR TO THE DROUGHT EMERGENCY PROCLAMATION.

(II) WATER MAY BE APPLIED TO MAINTAIN GRASS TENNIS COURTS, BY MEANS OF A BUCKET, CAN OR HAND-HELD HOSE EQUIPPED WITH AN AUTOMATIC SHUTOFF NOZZLE OR BY MEANS OF AN IRRIGATION SYSTEM

THAT IS DESIGNED AND OPERATED TO RESTRICT THE TIMING OR TOTAL VOLUME OF WATER, WHEN APPLIED BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 5:00 P.M. AND 9:00 A.M. IN A MANNER THAT ENSURES EFFECTIVE CONSERVATION.

(III) WATER MAY BE APPLIED TO ATHLETIC FIELD GRASS AREAS, OTHER THAN SAND-BASED ATHLETIC FIELD GRASS AREAS, BY A MEANS AND IN A MANNER THAT ENSURES EFFECTIVE CONSERVATION, BETWEEN 5:00 P.M. AND 9:00 A.M. DURING ONE NIGHT PER CALENDAR WEEK, BEGINNING TWO WEEKS PRIOR TO USE OF THE ATHLETIC FIELD FOR PRACTICE, REGULAR SEASON PLAY OR OTHER ORGANIZED USE AND CONTINUING THROUGH THE END OF THE SAME PRACTICE OR REGULAR SEASON OR OTHER ORGANIZED USE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH A SCHEDULE THAT HAS BEEN SUBMITTED, NOT LESS THAN 7 DAYS PRIOR TO IMPLEMENTATION, TO THE COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR, THE LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY AND, IF APPLICABLE, TO THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY AGENCY FROM WHICH THE WATER IS OBTAINED.

(IV) WATER MAY BE APPLIED TO SAND-BASED ATHLETIC FIELD GRASS AREAS IN ACCORDANCE WITH A PLAN APPROVED BY THE COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR. APPROVAL OF THE PLAN SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOLLOWING:

(A) ALL QUANTITIES OF WATER APPLIED SHALL BE MEASURED BY MEANS OF A VOLUMETRIC METER, AND REPORTS OF WEEKLY TOTAL WATER USE SHALL BE SUBMITTED ELECTRONICALLY TO THE COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR ON A MONTHLY BASIS DURING THE EMERGENCY, IN A FORM ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR.

(B) WATER MAY BE APPLIED AT AN AVERAGE DAILY RATE THAT DOES NOT EXCEED 54,300 GALLONS PER ACRE PER WEEK.

(C) WATER SHALL BE APPLIED BY A MEANS AND IN A MANNER THAT ENSURES EFFECTIVE CONSERVATION.

(D) ALL METERS AND METER RECORDS SHALL BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION BY REPRESENTATIVES OF THE LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY OR OF THE COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR, AT ALL TIMES.

(E) A COPY OF THE APPROVED PLAN SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY AND, IF APPLICABLE, TO THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY AGENCY FROM WHICH THE WATER IS OBTAINED, PRIOR TO IMPLEMENTATION.

(F) NONCOMPLIANCE BY THE WATER USER WITH ANY TERM OR CONDITION OF THE APPROVED PLAN SHALL CAUSE THE PLAN TO BE NULL

AND VOID, AND ANY FURTHER USE OF WATER PURSUANT TO THIS EXCEPTION SHALL BE PROHIBITED.

(V) WATER MAY BE APPLIED TO ESTABLISH AND MAINTAIN NEWLY SEEDED OR SODDED GRASS AREAS BY MEANS AND IN A MANNER THAT ENSURES EFFECTIVE CONSERVATION.

(VI) WATER MAY BE APPLIED TO ATHLETIC FIELD NON-GRASS AREAS TO CONTROL DUST DURING AN ATHLETIC EVENT, BY MEANS AND IN A MANNER THAT ENSURES EFFECTIVE CONSERVATION, IF DUST CONTROL IS NECESSARY TO PROTECT HEALTH OR SAFETY.

(VII) WATER MAY BE USED BY PROFESSIONAL LANDSCAPERS OR IRRIGATION CONTRACTORS FOR THE PURPOSE OF TESTING NEWLY INSTALLED OR REPAIRED IRRIGATION EQUIPMENT FOR A PERIOD NOT TO EXCEED FIFTEEN MINUTES PER IRRIGATION ZONE.

(23) The use of fresh water for irrigation and watering of outdoor gardens, landscaped areas, trees, shrubs and other outdoor plants except that fresh water may be:

(i) Used for ~~agricultural~~ irrigation for the production of food and fiber, AND the maintenance of livestock and poultry. ~~or the production of nursery stock.~~

(ii) Applied by means of a BUCKET, CAN, hand-held hose equipped with an automatic shut-off nozzle, OR AN IRRIGATION SYSTEM THAT IS DESIGNED AND OPERATED TO RESTRICT THE TIMING OR TOTAL VOLUME OF WATER AND TO RESTRICT THE APPLICATION TO SPECIFIC PLANTINGS AND THAT ENSURES EFFECTIVE CONSERVATION, when applied between the hours of 5 p.m. and 9 a.m. SOURCES OF WATER, OTHER THAN FRESH WATER, SHALL BE USED TO THE EXTENT AVAILABLE.

~~(iii) Applied by means of a hand held container or hand held hose equipped with an automatic shut off nozzle at the minimum rate necessary to establish and maintain newly planted gardens, trees, shrubs or other outdoor plants. Sources of water, other than fresh water, shall be used where available.~~

~~(iviii) Used by commercial nurseries at the minimum rate necessary to maintain stock, BY A MEANS THAT ENSURES EFFECTIVE CONSERVATION, only to the extent that sources of water other than fresh water adequate to supply needs are not available or feasible to use.~~

(iv) Used by ~~arboretums, and~~ public gardens of National, State or regional significance, OR ARBORETUMS, ~~at the minimum rate necessary~~ to preserve

specimens, BY A MEANS THAT ENSURES EFFECTIVE CONSERVATION, ONLY to the extent that sources of water other than fresh water adequate to supply needs are not available or feasible to use.

(v) USED BY A PROFESSIONAL LANDSCAPER OR IRRIGATION CONTRACTOR DURING WORKING HOURS, BY A MEANS THAT ENSURES EFFECTIVE CONSERVATION.

~~(vi) Used, in a manner that ensures effective conservation, [at the minimum rate necessary] to implement revegetation following earthmoving, where revegetation is required under an approved erosion and sedimentation control plan adopted under State law or regulation, to the extent that sources of water, other than fresh water, adequate to supply needs are not available or feasible to use. Revegetation use shall comply with applicable best conservation management practices for revegetation prescribed by the Department and county conservation districts.~~

(34) The use of fresh ANY water for watering a ANY portion of golf courses, except that fresh water may be used:

~~(i) To water tees and greens during the hours of 5 p.m. and 9 a.m.~~

~~(ii) To syringe heat sensitive grasses during daytime stress periods at the minimum rate necessary~~

~~(iii) As part of a necessary overseeding or resodding operation during the months of August, September and October at the minimum rate necessary.~~

WATER MAY BE APPLIED TO GREENS, TEES AND FAIRWAYS IN ACCORDANCE WITH A PLAN APPROVED BY THE COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR NO EARLIER THAN THREE (3) YEARS PRIOR TO THE MONTH OF USE DURING AN EMERGENCY. APPROVAL OF THE PLAN SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOLLOWING:

(I) ALL QUANTITIES OF WATER APPLIED SHALL BE MEASURED BY MEANS OF A VOLUMETRIC METER, AND REPORTS OF DAILY TOTAL WATER USE SHALL BE SUBMITTED ELECTRONICALLY TO THE COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR ON A MONTHLY BASIS DURING THE EMERGENCY, IN A FORM ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR.

(II) WATER MAY BE APPLIED AT AN AVERAGE DAILY RATE THAT DOES NOT EXCEED SEVENTY PERCENT OF THE CALENDAR MONTH BASIS QUANTITY. THE BASIS QUANTITY SHALL BE DETERMINED FOR EACH CALENDAR MONTH, AS FOLLOWS:

(A). METERED WATER USE FOR THE SAME CALENDAR MONTH, FOR EACH OF THE FIVE (5) YEARS PREVIOUS TO SUBMITTAL OF THE PLAN TO THE COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR, SHALL BE

AVERAGED, AFTER DEDUCTING ALL WATER THAT WAS USED FOR PURPOSES OTHER THAN IRRIGATION OF GREENS, TEES AND FAIRWAYS.

(B). TO THE EXTENT THAT METERED DATA IS NOT AVAILABLE FOR ANY YEAR PRIOR TO A DATE ONE YEAR AFTER THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THESE REGULATIONS OR THE DATE OF INSTALLATION OF THE CURRENT IRRIGATION SYSTEM, WHICHEVER IS LATER, AN APPLICATION RATE OF FORTY-ONE THOUSAND (41,000) GALLONS PER WEEK PER ACRE OF GREENS, TEES AND FAIRWAYS CURRENTLY IRRIGATED MAY BE USED IN LIEU OF METERED DATA.

(C). IN NO CASE SHALL THE BASIS QUANTITY BE LESS THAN THIRTY-THOUSAND (30,000) GALLONS PER WEEK PER ACRE NOR MORE THAN FIFTY-FOUR THOUSAND (54,000) GALLONS PER WEEK PER ACRE.

(III) EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN (VI) AND (VII) BELOW, WATER SHALL BE APPLIED BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 5:00 P.M AND 10:00 A.M.

(IV) ALL METERS AND METER RECORDS SHALL BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION BY REPRESENTATIVES OF THE LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY OR OF THE COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR, AT ALL TIMES.

(V) A COPY OF THE APPROVED PLAN SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY AND, IF APPLICABLE, TO THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY AGENCY FROM WHICH THE WATER IS OBTAINED, PRIOR TO IMPLEMENTATION.

(VI) WATER MAY BE APPLIED BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 10:00 A.M. AND 5:00 P.M. WITH A HAND-HELD HOSE EQUIPPED WITH AN AUTOMATIC SHUTOFF NOZZLE, TO SYRINGE HEAT-SENSITIVE GRASSES ON TEES, GREENS AND FAIRWAYS, IN A MANNER THAT ENSURES EFFECTIVE CONSERVATION AND SUCH THAT WATER IS APPLIED TO NO GRASS AREA FOR A PERIOD EXCEEDING FIFTEEN (15) MINUTES IN ANY ONE DAY.

(VII) WATER MAY BE USED BY PROFESSIONAL LANDSCAPERS OR IRRIGATION CONTRACTORS DURING REGULAR WORK HOURS FOR THE PURPOSE OF TESTING NEWLY INSTALLED OR REPAIRED IRRIGATION EQUIPMENT FOR A PERIOD NOT TO EXCEED FIFTEEN MINUTES PER IRRIGATION ZONE.

(VIII) NONCOMPLIANCE BY THE WATER USER WITH ANY TERM OR CONDITION OF THE APPROVED PLAN SHALL CAUSE THE PLAN TO BE NULL AND VOID, AND ANY FURTHER USE OF WATER PURSUANT TO THIS EXCEPTION SHALL BE PROHIBITED.

(45) The use of ANY water for washing paved surfaces, ~~such as streets, roads, sidewalks, driveways, garages, parking areas, tennis courts and patios,~~ except water may be used:

(i) For prewashing in preparation of ~~asphalt street or driveway~~ FOR recoating and sealing.

(ii) At the minimum rate necessary for the maintenance of tennis courts composed of clay or similar materials, by means of a BUCKET, CAN OR hand-held hose equipped with an automatic shutoff nozzle.

(iii) At the minimum rate necessary for sanitation of the premises of ~~eating and drinking places~~ RAW OR PROCESSED FOOD, PHARMACEUTICAL OR VACCINE PROCESSING, STORAGE OR VENDING ESTABLISHMENTS, INCLUDING RESTAURANTS AND GROCERY STORES.

(IV) AT THE MINIMUM RATE NECESSARY FOR THE SANITATION OF THE PREMISES OF WASTE HANDLING, STORAGE AND DISPOSAL FACILITIES.

(56) The use of ANY water for ornamental purposes, including fountains, artificial waterfalls and reflecting pools, EXCEPT:

- (I) FOUNTAINS OR WATERFALLS MAY BE OPERATED TO PERFORM THE PRIMARY AND NECESSARY AERATION FUNCTION FOR A POND THAT SUPPORTS FISH LIFE.
- (II) WATER MAY BE USED TO TOP OFF ORNAMENTAL WATER GARDENS OR FISH PONDS TO THE MINIMUM EXTENT NECESSARY TO MAINTAIN FISH AND AQUATIC LIFE.

(67) The use of ANY water for washing or cleaning of mobile equipment ~~including automobiles, trucks, trailers and boats.~~ except that:

(i) An individual may wash personally owned or leased vehicles by buckets ~~only~~. AND MAY USE A HAND-HELD HOSE EQUIPPED WITH AN AUTOMATIC SHUTOFF NOZZLE TO PRE-RINSE AND RINSE (TOTAL SPRAY PERIOD NOT TO EXCEED TWO MINUTES), IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOLLOWING SCHEDULE:

(A) ODD STREET ADDRESSES ON FIRST AND THIRD SATURDAYS OF THE MONTH;

(B) EVEN OR NO STREET ADDRESSES ON THE SECOND AND FOURTH SATURDAYS OF THE MONTH.

(ii) Water may be used by commercial car washes at the minimum rate necessary to ensure an effective wash.

(iii) Water may be used for cleaning of construction, emergency, public transportation or government vehicles if necessary to preserve the proper functioning and safe operation of the vehicle.

(IV) WATER MAY BE USED FOR CLEANING AND SANITIZING EQUIPMENT USED FOR HAULING OR VENDING RAW OR PROCESSED FOOD, PHARMACEUTICALS OR VACCINES FOR HUMAN OR LIVESTOCK USE, OR FOR HANDLING WASTE PRODUCTS.

(ivv) Water may be used for the cleaning of new and used cars which are part of a dealer's sales inventory in accordance with the following restrictions:

(A) A vehicle may be washed in preparation for sale at the time the vehicle is received from the manufacturer or prior owner.

(B) A vehicle shall be washed no more than once every 7 days, to be determined as follows:

(I) Odd street addresses on Tuesdays.

(II) Even OR NO_street addresses on Wednesdays.

~~(III) No street address on Thursdays.~~

(C) A vehicle may be washed following sale immediately prior to delivery to the purchaser.

(D) A vehicle may be washed only by a means designed and operated to assure effective conservation of water or ~~by bucket or hand-held hose equipped with an automatic shut-off nozzle~~ IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROCEDURES, EXCLUDING SCHEDULE, DESCRIBED IN (I) ABOVE.

([v]vi) Water may be used by professional mobile wash businesses, at the minimum rate necessary, for the washing of commercial, government or other vehicles as part of normal business practices.

(vii) A NONPROFIT SERVICE ORGANIZATION OR CLUB MAY WASH VEHICLES IN CONJUNCTION WITH A FUNDRAISING ACTIVITY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROCEDURES DESCRIBED IN (i) ABOVE, WITHOUT RESTRICTION AS TO SCHEDULE.

(78) The serving of water in restaurants, clubs or eating places, unless specifically requested by the individual.

(89) The use of ANY water to fill and top off swimming pools, except that water may be used to fill and top off:

(i) Public swimming pools and residential swimming pools serving 25 or more dwelling units, if the pools have filtration equipment allowing for continued use and recycling of water over the swimming season.

(ii) Swimming pools operated by health care facilities used in relation to patient care and rehabilitation.

(iii) Other pools only if approved by the public water supply ~~system~~ AGENCY from which the water is withdrawn. If water is obtained from other sources, permission from the owner of the source is required.

(10) THE USE OF WATER FROM A FIRE HYDRANT—INCLUDING SPRINKLER CAPS—FOR ANY PURPOSE, EXCEPT FOR THE FOLLOWING PERMISSIBLE USES:

(I) FIREFIGHTING.

(II) TESTING OF FIRE FIGHTING APPARATUS OR CONDUCTING WATER FLOW TESTS FOR FIRE INSURANCE CLASSIFICATION OR RECLASSIFICATION, IF APPROVED BY THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY AGENCY FROM WHICH THE WATER IS OBTAINED.

(III) FLUSHING SEWERS, WATER MAINS OR HYDRANTS WHEN NEEDED TO PROTECT PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY, IF APPROVED BY THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY AGENCY FROM WHICH THE WATER IS OBTAINED.

(IV) THE WATERING OF URBAN GARDENS IN THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA AFTER OBTAINING A WATER DEPARTMENT AND LICENSES AND INSPECTION PERMIT.

(V) THE FILLING OF TANK TRUCKS AT DESIGNATED FACILITIES WITH THE APPROVAL OF THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY AGENCY FROM WHICH THE WATER IS OBTAINED, OR IF THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, AFTER OBTAINING A WATER DEPARTMENT AND LICENSES AND INSPECTION PERMIT.

(VI) RECREATIONAL USE OF SPRINKLER CAPS IN THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA PURSUANT TO THE RECREATIONAL FIRE HYDRANT PROGRAM AT AUTHORIZED LOCATIONS AND AT TIMES SUPERVISED BY THE CITY POLICE, FIRE, RECREATION AND PARK FACILITIES.

(11) THE USE OF ANY WATER THAT IS NOT FOR A BENEFICIAL USE.

§ 119.5. Penalties and enforcement.

A water user who violates this chapter, fails to implement the duties and responsibilities imposed by this chapter or impedes or interferes with ~~action~~ ACTIONS undertaken or ordered under this chapter, shall be subject to the penalties provided under 35 Pa.C.S. §

7707 (relating to penalties). Violation of a provision of this chapter is a summary offense enforceable by proper law enforcement authorities or private citizens under 234 Pa. Code Chapters 50 and 6000 (relating to summary cases; and Rules of Criminal Procedure for the Municipal Court of Philadelphia). IN THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, THIS CHAPTER SHALL BE ENFORCED BY THE DEPARTMENTS OF WATER, POLICE, AND LICENSES AND INSPECTION.

§ 119.5a. [Reserved].

§ 119.6. Procedure for exemptions or variance from the prohibition of nonessential uses of water.

(a) If compliance with the prohibition of nonessential use of water would result in extraordinary hardship upon a water user, the water user may apply for an exemption or variance.

(B) IF A PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY AGENCY CAN DEMONSTRATE THAT COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROHIBITION OF NONESSENTIAL USE OF WATER IS UNNECESSARY DUE TO ADEQUATE WATER SUPPLY AND IT IS FOLLOWING A DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN APPROVED BY THE COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH §118.4, THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY AGENCY MAY APPLY FOR AN EXEMPTION THROUGHOUT ALL OR PORTIONS OF ITS SERVICE AREA. IN REVIEWING SUCH APPLICATIONS, THE COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR SHALL GIVE PRIMARY CONSIDERATION TO ANY IMPACTS THAT APPROVAL OF SUCH APPLICATION MAY HAVE ON THE OVERALL RESOURCES OF THE WATERSHED OR RIVER BASIN AND ON THE ABILITY OF LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES LOCALLY OR THROUGHOUT THE DROUGHT EMERGENCY AREA TO ENFORCE THESE OR OTHER EMERGENCY REGULATIONS. SUCH CONSIDERATION MAY, ALONE, BE CAUSE FOR DENIAL.

(bc) For purposes of this section, extraordinary hardship means a permanent damage to property, INCLUDING PERISHABLE RAW OR PROCESSED PRODUCT, or other personal or economic loss which is substantially more severe than the sacrifices borne by other water users subject to the prohibition of nonessential use of water.

(ed) A water user OR PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY AGENCY ~~that believes it suffers an extraordinary hardship and desires to be wholly or partially exempt from the prohibitions or nonessential use of water~~ may apply for an exemption or variance under the following procedures:

(1) The water user OR PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY AGENCY shall submit a written application with full documentation supporting the need for the requested relief to:

Commonwealth Drought Coordinator
c/o Department of Environmental Protection
Post Office Box ~~8764~~ 8555
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17105-8555.

(2) The application FROM A WATER USER shall contain information specifying:

- (i) The nature of the hardship claimed and the reason for the requested exemption or variance.
- (ii) The efforts taken by the water user to conserve water and the extent to which water use may be reduced by the applicant without extraordinary hardship.

(3) THE APPLICATION FROM A PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY AGENCY SHALL CONTAIN INFORMATION SPECIFYING:

- (I) THE NATURE OF THE HARDSHIP CLAIMED AND THE REASON FOR THE REQUESTED EXEMPTION OR VARIANCE.
- (II) THE ADEQUACY OF THE SUPPLY.
- (III) EVIDENCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH AN APPROVED DROUGHT CONTINGENCY PLAN.

(34) The Commonwealth Drought Coordinator OR HIS DESIGNEE will review the application in consultation with ~~the staff of PEMA and~~ other appropriate Commonwealth agencies, and may request the ~~water user~~ APPLICANT to provide within a reasonable time additional information as necessary to review the application.

(45) The Commonwealth Drought Coordinator OR HIS DESIGNEE, as agent for PEMA ~~and the Council~~, is authorized to render a decision regarding applications received for exemption or variance. The Commonwealth Drought Coordinator OR HIS DESIGNEE will provide the ~~water user and other interested parties~~ APPLICANT notice in writing of the decision and the reasons for the decision. When possible, the Commonwealth Drought Coordinator OR HIS DESIGNEE will provide a WRITTEN decision within 7 working days, OR IF PERISHABLE PRODUCTS ARE INVOLVED WITHIN ONE WORKING DAY, of submission of an application or ~~of~~ WILL REQUEST additional information as necessary to review the application. WHERE APPROPRIATE, THE COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR MAY ISSUE A STATEWIDE EXEMPTION OR

VARIANCE TO SIMILARLY SITUATED WATER USERS. A NOTICE OF THE DECISION WILL BE PUBLISHED IN THE *PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN*. Unless appealed under this section, the decision of the Commonwealth Drought Coordinator OR HIS DESIGNEE shall be considered a final action on the application

(56) ~~A water user~~ ANY PERSON aggrieved by a decision of the Commonwealth Drought Coordinator OR HIS DESIGNEE may, within 30 days of WRITTEN notice of the decision OR PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF THE DECISION IN THE *PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN*, appeal the decision to ~~the Council~~ PEMA.

(67) An appeal from an initial decision of the Commonwealth Drought Coordinator OR HIS DESIGNEE will not act as an automatic supersedeas, but, upon cause shown and where the circumstances require it, ~~the Commonwealth Drought Coordinator or the Council, or both,~~ PEMA will have the power to grant a supersedeas.

(78) When the initial decision is appealed, ~~the Council~~ PEMA will provide the ~~water user~~ APPLICANT with an opportunity for a hearing. ~~The Council will~~ PEMA MAY appoint a ~~presiding officer to act as the hearing officer~~ HEARING EXAMINER, WHO MAY BE AN ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE OF THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION. HEARINGS MAY BE HELD TELEPHONICALLY. ~~Hearings will be conducted under 1 Pa. Code Part II (relating to general rules of administrative practice and procedure).~~

(89) The hearing examiner will provide the record of the hearing, if any, and a recommendation to PEMA ~~and Council~~ for review and adoption.

([9]10) ~~The Council~~ PEMA will notify the ~~water user~~ APPLICANT in writing of its final decision and the reasons for the decision regarding the appeal.

(de) An exemption or variance will only be granted to AN APPLICANT ~~a water user~~ to the extent necessary to relieve extraordinary hardship and will be conditioned upon compliance with all reasonable conservation measures required by this chapter or the variance or exemption.

(ef) An exemption or variance ~~approved by the Council~~ may be modified or rescinded BY THE COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR if public health, safety and welfare require further reduction in water use.

([f]g) An exemption or variance granted to a water user for a specific property, purpose or person is not transferable to another property, purpose or water user without prior written approval from PEMA ~~and the Council~~ THE COMMONWEALTH DROUGHT COORDINATOR.

§ 119.7. ~~Implementation period.~~

~~This chapter shall be implemented upon declaration by the Governor of a drought or water shortage emergency, and shall remain in effect during the period of the emergency until terminated by action of the Governor or by concurrent resolution of the General Assembly. Notice of the termination of the drought emergency and the reversion of this chapter to a standby status will be submitted to the Legislative Reference Bureau for publication in the *Pennsylvania Bulletin*.~~

§ 119.8. [Reserved].

**TRANSMITTAL SHEET FOR REGULATIONS SUBJECT TO THE
REGULATORY REVIEW ACT**

I.D. NUMBER: 30-56
SUBJECT: Prohibition of Nonessential Water Uses in a Commonwealth Drought Emergency Area
AGENCY: PA Emergency Management Agency

TYPE OF REGULATION

- X Proposed Regulation
Final Regulation
Final Regulation with Notice of Proposed Rulemaking Omitted
120-day Emergency Certification of the Attorney General
120-day Emergency Certification of the Governor
Delivery of Tolled Regulation
a. With Revisions b. Without Revisions

RECEIVED
2000 OCT 24 AM 10:40
INDEPENDENT
REGULATORY
REVIEW COMMISSION

FILING OF REGULATION

DATE	SIGNATURE	DESIGNATION
10/24/00	<u>Paula Hand</u>	HOUSE COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS AND EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS
10/24/00	<u>Lauree Koppenhoff</u>	
10/24/00	<u>Valerie Keller</u>	SENATE COMMITTEE ON STATE GOVERNMENT
10/24/00	<u>Sam Gado</u>	
10/24/00	<u>St. Melnick</u>	INDEPENDENT REGULATORY REVIEW COMMISSION
		ATTORNEY GENERAL
10/24/00	<u>Ch. Brown</u>	LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE BUREAU

October 19, 2000